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GEORGE R. ARIYOSHI 
Governor 

OEPARTMEtC _. PLANNING 
ANO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CHARLES W. DUKE 

Chairman 

• • • SHINICHI NAKAGAWA 
Vice ChairmanLAND USE COMMISSION 

Suite 1795, Pacific Trade Center, 190 S. King Street, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
COMMISSJON MEMBERS: 

James Carras 
Colette Machado 

June 28, 1979 Shinsel Miyasato 
Mitsuo Dura 

George Pa.scua 
Carol Whitesell 

Edward Yanai 

GORDAN FURUTANI 
Executive Officer 

Mr. Sidney Fuke 
Planning Director 
Hawaii ' Planning Departmen~ 
25 Aupuni Street 
Hilo, Hawaii 96720 

Dear Mr. Fuke: 

Subject: SP78-292 - GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, INC . 

In reference to our letter to you dated 

February 23, 1979 , enclosed is a copy of the 

; Decision and Order o n ·SP78-292 for your informatio n 

and records. 

Officer 

Encl. 
cc: Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. 
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BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF HAWAII 

In the Matter of the SP78-292 
Petition for Special Permit 
of GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, INC. 
INC. 

This is to ce.lify tha t t his is a true and correct copy of the 
Decision .nd O ,dcr on {i lc in t :~e o ffice of the Sta te Land Use 
Commission, Honolu lu, H,1wc1i' 

.JUN 2 8 1979 
Date 

DECISION AND ORDER 



BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF HAWAII 

In the Matter of the ) SP78-292 
Petition for Special Permit ) 
of GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, ) FINDINGS OF FACT, 
INC. ) CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND 

) DECISION AND ORDER 
)------------------

The Land Use Commission of the State of Hawaii, 

having duly considered the entire record in the above entitled 

matter, makes the following findings of fact and conclusions 

of law. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Petitioner has filed for an amendment to 

the life of the Special Permit from five (5) years to ten (10) 

years, for the establishment of an auto body repair shop, 

truck repair and vehicle storage area on four (4) acres of 

land situated within the State Land Use Agricultural District 

at Waikoloa, South Kohala, Hawaii, Tax Map Key 6-8-01: portion 

of 8. 

2. The subject property is the former site of 

Island Dairy and is located along the makai side of the 

Mamalahoa Highway at the entrance road to the Waimea-Kohala 

Airport. 

3. The Special Permit was originally granted on 

March 7, 1978, by the Land Use Commission. A condition of 

approval stipulated that the Special Permit be valid for a period 

not to exceed five (5) years from the effective date of approval. 



4. The Petitioner has cited the difficulty in 

obtaining a bank loan based upon the five (5) year permit 

period, as reason for the time extension request. 

5. The Hawaii County Planning Commission determined 

that the reason cited by the Petitioner warranted granting of 

the time extension. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The Petitioner has shown "unusual circumstances" 

pursuant to Rule 9-3 of the Rules of Practice and Procedure 

of the Land Use Commission for granting of a time extension. 

2. The granting of the time extension is not 

violative of HRS Chapter 205-6 and State Land Use Commission 

District Regulation, Part V. 

DECISION AND ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Special Permit Number 78-292 

for a five (5) year time extension to the life of the special 

permit be approved, subject to the condition that all other 

conditions originally approved remain in effect and that the 

effective time period of the Special Permit shall commence on 

February 21, 1979. 

DATED: ~-' Hawaii , ~ X / /171 
LAND USE co~ ' 

BL'~L 
C. W. DUKE 
Chairman and Commissioner 

By~i?~
J'sR.cARRAS 
Commissioner 
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~By~
7hhNsEr ~ATO 

Commissioner 

By ~~ ~ 
MITSUO OURA 
Commissioner 

By rt ~~ 
- ~~EO_R.,_G_E _ PAS_C _______- _ ____ __ _U_A 

Commissioner 

CAROL B. WHITESELL 
Commissioner 
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BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF HAWAII 

In the Matter of the ) SP78-292 
Petition for Special Permit ) 
of GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, ) GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, INC. 
INC. ) 

) 
)---------- --------

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a copy of the Land Use 

Commission's Decision and Order was served upon the follow­

ing by certified mail: 

SIDNEY PUKE, Planning Director 
Hawaii Planning Department 
25 Aupuni Street 
Hilo, Hawaii 96720 

GARY R. CARAVALHO 
Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. 
P. 0. Box 1030 
Kamuela, Hawaii 96743 

DATED: Honolulu, Hawaii, this 28th day of June, 1979. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 
LAND USE COMMISSION 

Minutes of Meeting 

Conference Room, 9th Floor 
Kamamalu Building 

250 South King Street 
Honolulu, Hawaii 

February 21, 1979 - 9:30 a.m. 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Charles Duke, Chairman 
Shinichi Nakagawa, Vice 
James Carras 
Shinsei Miyasato 
Mitsue Oura 
George Pascua 
Carol Whitesell 
Edward Yanai 

Chairman 

COMMISSIONER ABSENT: Colette Machado 

STAFF PRESENT: Gordan Furutani, Executive Officer 
Daniel Yasui, · Planner 
Allan Kawada, Deputy Attorney General 
Dora Horikawa, Chief Clerk 

Ray Russell, Court Reporter 
Benjamin Matsubara, Consultant 

Chairman Duke announced that the Commission will go into 
executi~e session later today to discuss a personnel matter; 
also that the order of the agenda will be shifted. 

ACTION 

A78-442 - MITSUGI & FUSAKO YAMAMURA 

In the matter of the boundary amendment petition by 
Mitsugi and Fusako Yamamura, Docket A78-442, a hearing was held 
on December 5, 1978 by Mr. Benjamin Matsubara, Hearing Officer. 
Based on his findings and conclusions, it was recommended by 
Mr. Matsubara that the petition be approved since the request 
was reasonable, non-violative of Section 205-2 of the Hawaii 
Revised Statutes, and consistent with the Interim Statewide 
Land Use Guidance Policy. 

Commissioner Miyasato moved to approve Docket A78-442, 
which was seconded by Commissioner Carras. The motion was 
unanimously carried. 



Minutes - February 21, 1979 -5-

SP79-334 - HENRY OPUKAHAIA SCHOOL 
APPLICATION TO ALLOW' THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A PRIVATE SCHOOL 
AT KEAAU, PUNA, HAWAII 

Following a report from the staff planner, it was moved by 
Commissioner Carras and ·seconded by Commissioner Oura to approve 
the Special Permit, subject to the conditions imposed by the 
Hawaii County Planning Commission. The motion was carried. 

78-292 - GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, INC. 
PPLICATION TO EXTEND THE LIFE OF THE SPECIAL PERMIT FROM 5 YEARS 

TO 10 YEARS TO ALLOW THE ESTABLISHMENT OF AN AUTO BODY REPAIR 
SHOP, TRUCK REPAIR AND VEHICLE STORAGE AREA AT SOUTH KOHALA, 
HAWAII 

The staff memorandum was presented by the Executive Officer. 
Counselor Kawada recommended that the Commission impose an addi­
tional condition to the approval of the Special Permit uthat the 
ten year extension of the Special Permit shall commence on approval 
of the modification by the Land Use Commission (February 21, 1979)". 

Commissioner Carras moved that the petitioner's.request for 
an extension from five to ten yeirs be granted, subject to the 
conditions imposed by the Hawaii County Planning Commission, and 
the additional condition as recommended by Counselor Kawada. 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Oura and unanimously 
passed. 

ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

Upon motion by Commissioner Whitesell, seconded by Commis­
sioner Pascua, the minutes of October 19, 1978 were approved as 
circulated. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Commissioner Pascua moved to go into executive session to 
discuss a personnel matter, which was seconded by Commissioner 
Oura and carried by voice vote. 

The meeting was adjourend at 4:55 p.m. 



STATE OF H.}\WAII 
LAND USE COM1'1ISSION 

VOTE RECORD 

ITEM SP78-292 - GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE 

SERVICE, INC. 
PLACE DPED Conference Baarn 

Honolulu, Hawaii 

NAME 

WHITESELL, CAROL 

-

MACHADO, COLETTE 

OURA, MITSUOs 

PASCUA, GEORGE R. 
, 

MIYASATO, SHINSEI 

NAKAGAWA , SHINICHI 

CARRAS, JAMESM 

YANAI, EDWARD 

DUKE, CHARLES 

Comments: 

YES 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

TIME__~9-·_3u0,_,a;i.._IDw.---------

NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 

X 

X 

X 

I move that the petitioner's request for an extension 
from five to ten years be granted, subject to the 

conditions originally set forth by the Hawaii County 
Planning Commission, and that the ten year time 
extension of the Special Permit shall commence on 
approval of the modification by the Land Use Commission 
(February 21, 1979) . 



STATE OF HAWAII 
LAND USE COMMISSION 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Land Use Commission February 21, 1979 

FROM: Staff 

SUBJECT: SP78-292 - Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. 

The petitioner, Gary's Automotive Service, Inc., is 
requesting an amendment to the life of the Special Permit from 
five (5) years to ten (10) years. The Special Permit had been 
granted to allow the establishment of an auto body repair shop, 
truck repair and vehicle storage area on approximately four (4) 
acres of land situated within the State Land Use Agricultural 
District at Waikoloa, South Kohala, Hawaii, Tax Map Key 
6-8-01: portion of 8. The subject property is the former site 
of Island Dairy and located along the makai side of the 
Mamalahoa Highway, in the vicinity of the entrance road to the 
Waimea-Kohala Airport. 

The Land Use Commission had originally approved the 
Special Permit on March 7, 1978, subject to the conditions 
imposed by the Hawaii County Planning Commission and to the 
additional condition that the Special Permit shall be valid 
for a period not to exceed five (5) years from the effective 
date of approval. The petitioner is now requesting that this 
additional condition be amended so that the life of the Special 
Permit is extended to a ten-year period. 

In support of the amendment request, the petitioner has in 
part stated the following: 

"Due to the terms of purchase with Bank of Hawaii on the 
old Island Dairy site, I'm hereby requesting the Plan­
ning Department to take into consideration that the 
term (loan) is for 10 years, which they have already 
cut it down from 15 years to 10 years. 

"As you can see, the bank is hesitant in releasing the 
funds because of only five-year permit. However, if 
the Department will extend the permit to 10 years or 
offer an option of renewal for the other five. This 
presently puts the Bank and S.B.A. in a better position 
to release the funds." 



The Hawaii County Planning Commission conducted a public 
hearing on the amendment to the Special Permit on December 13, 
1978. At that time, the applicant provided clarification and 
testimony in support of the request. No other persons 
testified concerning the request. For the Commission's 
information, the December 13, 1978 hearing transcript has been 
attached (County Exhibit G). 

On January 11, 1979, the Hawaii County Planning Commission 
voted to recommend approval of the amendment to the Special 
Permit based on the following: 

"The Commission voted to send a favorable recommendation 
to the State Land Use Commission since they felt that 
the proposed use would not adversely affect surrounding 
properties nor burden public agencies in the provision 
of public facilities and utilities, that unusual 
conditions have arisen wherein there is a need for 
additional industrial areas to serve the Waimea com­
munity, and that the request is consistent with the 
pertinent General Plan policies and standards. The 
requested extension to ten (10) years would not be 
contrary to the reasons for the Commission's original 
favorable recommendation. 

"Based on the transcripts of the State Land Use 
Commission's March 7, 1978 meeting, it appears that the 
five (5) year life-span was imposed to allow re-evaluation 
of the Special Permit based on whether the area becomes a 
designated industrial area. Since the approval of the 
Special Permit, the Planning Department, with the con­
currence of this Commission, has recommended that an 
area including the subject property be designated as 
Industrial on the General Plan Land Use Pattern Allocation 
Guide Map. Thus, after the date of the State Land Use 
Commission action on the Special Permit, the Planning 
Department and the Planning Commission have gone on record 
sanctioning the industrial use of the area. Further, the 
ten (10) year period will maintain the State Land Use 
Commission's opportunity to re-evaluate the Special Permit." 

The favorable recommendation was subject to the condition 
that all other conditions originally approved remain in effect. 
For the Commission's information, the January 11, 1979 meeting 
minutes (County Exhibit N) and the original conditions of the 
Special Permit are attached. 

The original conditions of approval included the following: 

"l. The total area of operation, including the existing 
structures, storage area and appurtenances, shall 
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not exceed four (4) acres. Of these four (4) acres, 
the total storage area shall not exceed one and 
one-half (1½) acres. A map showing these areas 
shall be submitted to the Planning Director for 
review and approval. Subsequent to the Planning 
Director's approval of the proposed areas, a 
metes and bounds description of the respective 
areas shall be submitted to the Planning Director. 
The corners of the respective areas shall be 
permanently staked with one-half (1/2) inch steel 
pipes or equivalent. 

"2. The storage area shall be adequately screened from 
views along the Mamalahoa Highway and the proposed 
Waimea By-Pass Road corridor by the existing 
topography and/or landscaping. 

"3. The storage area, parking area(s), and internal 
vehicular circulation areas shall be provided with 
an all-weather dust free surface. 

"4. A landscaping plan shall be submitted to the 
Planning Director for review and approval. 

"5. The Plan Approval process shall be complied with. 
Plans shall be submitted for plan approval within 
one (1) year of the effective date of the Special 
Permit. 

"6. Prior to occupancy, all of the above conditions 
shall be complied with. 

"7. Vehicles in storage shall not be stacked higher 
than six (6) feet above the ground. 

11 8. Upon termination of the use, the subject property 
shall be cleared of all materials not permanently 
fixed to the ground. 

"9. That all other rules and regulations shall be 
complied with." 

It was further stated by the Planning Commission that: 
"Should any of the foregoing conditions not be met, the Special 
Permit . may be deemed null and void." 

-3-



PLANNING COMMISSION 

Planning Department 
County of Hawaii 

HEARING TRANSCRIPT 
December 13, 1978 

A regularly advertised public hearing, on the application of 
Gary's Automotive Service, Inc., was called to order at 10:30 a.m. 
in the Waimea Civic Center Conference Room, Waimea, South 
Kohala, Hawaii, with Chairman William F. Mielcke presiding. 

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABSENT: Ex-officio Member 
J. Walsh Hanley Akira Fujimoto 
Shigeru Fujimoto 
Lorraine R. Jitchaku 
Haruo Murakami 
Bert H. Nakano 
Alfredo Orita 
William J. Paris, Jr. 
Charles H. Sakamoto 

Sidney M. Puke, Director (From 10:35 a.m.) 
Ilima Piianaia, Planner 

David Murakami, representing Ex-officio Member Edward 
Harada 

Stephen Manezes, Deputy Corporation Counsel (From 
10:35 a.m.) 

and approximately 9 people in attendance 

CHAIRMAN: Item two on the agenda, public hearing on the 
request by Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. to amend Special 
Permit 78-292 which allowed the establishment of an auto body 
repair shop, truck repair, and vehicle storage area on approx­
imately four acres of land situated within the State Land Use 
Agricultural District. The request is to amend the life of 
the Special Permit from 5 years to 10 years. The area involved 
is the former site of Island Dairy, located along the makai 
side of the Mamalahoa Highway, ·in the vicinity of the entrance 
road to the Waimea-Kohala Airport, Waikoloa, South Kohala, 
TMK: 6-8-01:portion of 8. Staff? 

PIIANAIA: (Presented background on file.) 

CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Ilima. · If our recommendations for 
the General Plan are adopted by the County Council, would this 
be necessary? 

PIIANAIA: No, because this is a special permit which allows 
it; and if you'll remember, one of the reasons that you voted 
to recommend approval of this in the first place was that it 
was a suitable area for -industrial, in keeping with the General 
Plan designation. 

CHAIRMAN: So in a way, this is just academic, if in fact 
everything goes through? 

EXHIBIT 6 



PIIANAIA: Well, the area would still have to be put into 
a State Land Use Urban District and then rezoning would have to 
be sought. 

CHAIRMAN: Okay, Commissioners, do you have any questions 
of the staff? 

MURAKAMI: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Murakami. 

MURAKAMI: Ilima, in other words, what you're saying is 
that if we approve, conditions can be attached where it says 
you know, the beginning when we gave them we gave five-years 
because of the reexamining period, now if we were to give the 
ten years, the other five years can be stipulated as to 
reexamining period? 

PIIANAIA: That could be a condition. As it was pointed 
out in the staff's background, this special permit went to the 
Land Use Commission for action without any time stipulation, 
any life to the permit, and when the State Land Use Commission 
reviewed the docket they, I guess, had enough doubt in their 
mind about this area being used industrially, although this 
Commission felt it was in appropriate use, that they stipulated 
a 5-year life to the permit. 

MURAKAMI: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN: Thank you. Commissioners, any further questions 
of the staff? 

ORITA: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN·: Yes, Commissioner Orita. 

ORITA: Ilima, on January 12, 1973, the permit, the 
Special Permit that was asked for, and on January 31, 1978, 
"A. The Commission voted to send a favorable recommendation .•• " 
so, from 1978, that was early part of this right? 

PIIANAIA: Correct. 

ORITA: So actually that's still in effect until 1983? 

PIIANAIA: Yes, provided that other conditions are met, which 
the petitioner is trying to meet other conditions at this time. 
His main hangup is, as he stated, the lending institutions would 
not finance him for a 5-year period. 

ORITA: Okay, thank you. 

CHAIRMAN: _Commissioner Hanley. 

HANLEY: Yes, Ilima, there seems to be something that is a 
little inconsistent to me. It seems we were going through an idea 
in Kona of keeping the industrial away from ·the approaches to the 
populated area from the airport. Now are we being inconsistent in 
putting industrial immediately adjacent to the entrance of the 
airport? 
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PIIANAIA: I'll defer that to the Planning Director. 

CHAIRMAN: Mr. Fuke, good morning, welcome. 

FUKE: 
you raised is 

I 
an 

think that, Commissioner Hanley, the point that 
interesting one. But the first concern is that 

in a situation for Kailua, of course, it's widely conceded that 
Keahole Airport is going to be, if not already is, a major 
resort oriented airport as distinguished from the Kamuela Airport 
which has much more of a, I guess, agricultural or local or rural 
type of orientation. The other one is that, well, okay, so the 
first one is more in relation to the functions of both the air­
ports. The other concern was that primarily in looking at the 
entire Waimea area, it was felt that this area would be more 
suitable, not so much from the standpoint about the airport 
questions but when you look at it, what's there on the side 
that goes down to Kawaihae and what is there on the Hamakua 
end, and it's basically agriculturally oriented and so the 
thought was to have a detached industrial area sufficiently 
removed from the basic core community; and it was felt that 
this location was the most appropriate. 

We do realize, however, that there is that some amount of conceptual 
inconsistency with the Kona situation except that as I mentioned 
earlier, the functions of the Kona Airport would obviously be 
different from that of the function of the Karnuela Airport. 

HANLEY: Is Hilo a tourist oriented airport or is there a 
third category? 

FUKE: I think in the situation of Hilo, I would consider 
that a combination of the first and the second category because 
Hilo to some extent, although it's a major, you know, the entry 
way for the visitors right now, it also functions as a primary 
commercial center for the city of Hilo. Hilo, I think we all 
know, is increasingly becoming much more, well, or has been 
traditionally and still is, more of a commerce center, much 
more than it is a resort area, unlike the Kona coast. 

CHAIRivlAN: Commissioners, any further questions you'd like 
to refer to the staff? If there are none, the Chair at this 
time would like to call the applicant or a representative of 
the applicant forward. Yes, we'll swear you in if you'll raise 
your right hand. Do you swear to tell the truth and nothing but 
the truth on the application now before the Hawaii County Planning 
Commission? 

CARVALHO: I do. 

CHAIRMAN: Please state your name into the microphone. 

CARVALHO: Gary Carvalho from Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. 

CHAIRMAN: Mr. Carvalho, you've heard -the staff's background 
report on your request to amend your Special Permit. Do you 
have anything to add for the benefit of the Commission? 

CARVALHO: I've talked to the Manager of Parker Ranch and 
he has given me some plans and ideas that Parker Ranch has and 
they do have intentions of trying to push the industrial area 
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PIIANAIA: I'll defer that to the Planning Director. 

CHAIRMAN: Mr. Fuke, good morning, welcome. 

FUKE: I think that, Commissioner Hanley, the point that 
you raised is an interesting one. But the first concern is that 
in a situation for Kailua, of course, it's widely conceded that 
Keahole Airport is going to be, if not already is, a major 
resort oriented airport as distinguished from the Kamuela Airport 
which has much more of a, I guess, agricultural or local or rural 
type of orientation. The other one is that, well, okay, so the 
first one is more in relation to the functions of both the air­
ports. The other concern was that primarily in looking at the 
entire Waimea area, it was felt that this area would be more 
suitable, not so much from the standpoint about the airport 
questions but when you look at it, what's there on the side 
that goes down to Kawaihae and what is there on the Hamakua 
end, and it's basically agriculturally oriented and so the 
thought was to have a detached industrial area sufficiently 
removed from the basic core community; and it was felt that 
this location was the most appropriate. 

We do realize, however, that there is that some amount of conceptual 
inconsistency with the Kona situation except that as I mentioned 
earlier, the functions of the Kona Airport would obviously be 
different from that of the function of the Kamuela Airport. 

HANLEY: Is Hilo a tourist oriented airport or is there a 
third category? 

FUKE: I think in the situation of Hilo, I would consider 
that a combination of the first and the second category because 
Hilo to some extent, although it's a major, you know, the entry 
way for the visitors right now, it also functions as a primary 
commercial center for the city of Hilo. Hilo, I think we all 
know, is increasingly becoming much more, well, or has been 
traditionally and still is, more of a commerce center, much 
more than it is a resort area, unlike the Kona coast. 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioners, any further questions you'd like 
to refer to the staff? If there are none, the Chair at this 
time would like to call the applicant or a representative of 
the applicant forward. Yes, we'll swear you in if you'll raise 
your right hand. Do you swear to tell the truth and nothing but 
the truth on the application now before the Hawaii County Planning 
Commission? 

CARVALHO: I do. 

CHAIRMAN: Please state your name into the microphone. 

CARVALHO: Gary Carvalho from Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. 

CHAIRMAN: Mr. Carvalho, you've heard the staff's background 
report on your request to amend your Special Permit. Do you 
have anything to add for the benefit of the Commission? 

CARVALHO: I've talked to the Manager of Parker Ranch and 
he has given me some plans and ideas that Parker Ranch has and 
they do have intentions of trying to push the industrial area 
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out ih that area, in the other 28 acres of that portion which 
is 33 point something acres; and the hope to, in the real near 
future, try to see if they can sublease some of that land for 
industrial. So I hope maybe that can be taken into consideration, 
what kind of plans Parker Ranch has. They're pulling back 28 acres 
in three years. Right now I do have the whole thing. For three 
years they plan on trying to subdivide that thing into industrial. 

CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Carvalho. Commissioners, do you 
have any questions that you would like to ask the applicant? 

MURAKAMI: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Murakami.· 

MURAKAMI: Gary, would you agree to this, you know, the option 
of the other 5-year, optional for renewal, if that condition is 
put in? 

CARVALHO: I didn't understand. 

MURAKAMI: If the Department will extend the permit to 10 
years or offer an option of renewal term for the other 5 years, 
would you agree if we put that condition in? 

CARVALHO: Yes, I would agree. The only thing I think the , 
lender would prefer if something more secure, like there would 
be another 5 years instead·of an option. I mean, as you can see, 
I think that option wouldn't be, it wouldn't kind of be sufficient 
to them, you know. 

MURAKAMI: It's just a condition for renewal, whether they 
will renew that nobody knows. 

CARVALHO: Well, see, the loan has been cut down from 15 years 
to 10 years already; and let's say if the Planning Department turns 
the other 5 years down, then this loan would either be, you know, 
in other words, I would have to make some fantastic payments to 
keep up the loan or either I'd have to just forget the deal. 

MURAKAMI: But you don't mind if the condition is, you're 
not disagreeing to the condition? 

CARVALHO: Yeah, I myself, an option, I would be happy with 
that, you know. 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Nakano. 

NAKANO: Gary, you already have a 10-year loan from the bank, 
is that right? 

CARVALHO: Right. They cut it down from 15 to 10 years. 

NAKANO: So, how does it affect you by your request here? 
You already have your 10-year loan, so the bank is going to 
release the money to you. 

CARVALHO: But that's the holdup now. That's the only holdup. 
They don't want to release the money because they feel 5 years is 
not sufficient enough to carry the loan. 
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NAKANO: No, my question is you have an agreement already, 
loan agreement, amt right, with the bank? 

CARVALHO: It's just, you know, it's not a signed agreement. 
They're ready to release funds if we have something capable to what 
they want. 

NAKANO: That's all I want to know. 

CHAIRMAN: Yeah, I guess, what he's saying Commissioner Nakano 
is is they're concerned with the full 10-year term. 

ORITA: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Orita. 

ORITA: Gary, you say that you do agree with that condition, 
do you think you need more time to confer with the bank to see if 
the bank would go along with that condition, and maybe you can 
more or less give the point of view to the bank, to the loan 
institute? 

CARVALHO: Before I answer that, can I ask one more question. 
What would, now let's say if we have an option of 5, this option 
would be under certain conditions that if the industrial area 
would move to a different location then the option is no good, 
right? I think they would go along with the option providing 
it's just what I said, if the option, the stipulation in that, 
let's say in 5 years the industrial area moves out maybe by 
Shield Pacific or something, then I would have to move, right? 

CHAIRMAN: Staff, can you clarify? 

PIIANAIA: I'd just like to clarify that the request before 
you is to amend a condition which was imposed by the State Land 
Use Commission limiting the life of the Special Permit for 5 years. 
Basically, I think the Commission should remember that the purpose 
of the Special Permit is to allow an unusual and reasonable use 
within the State Land Use Agricultural District in this case; 
and whether a renewal would make any sense or what. You know, 
you're looking at the use and the use has been permitted already, 
the Special Permit has been acted upon and we're looking at amending 
it or the conditions set by the Land Use Commission. I don't know 
if that clarifies it. 

HANLEY: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Hanley. 

HANLEY: I think from experience with both the banks and 
the SBA, ··that it'd be safe to indicate that they would, neither 
one of them consider any kind of option as satisfactory unless 
it was the unilateral option in favor of Gary's Automotive, and 
that the Planning Commission and the Land Use Commission had 
no option to cancel. So it would be tantamount to, as far as 
our considera tion is concerned to granting the 10 years because 
the Planning Commission and the State Land Use Commission would 
not have any option to terminate the use after 5 years. So for 
purposes of consideration, I think it would be well to go ahead 
and consider just a 10-year period without any kind of option 
because it wouldn't be satisfac;:tory to the bank and S-BA. 
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CHAIRMAN: Okay, any further questions for Mr. Carvalho? 
Yes, Commissioner Paris. 

PARIS: I'd just like to ask our Planning Department head 
how long he thinks before the Council will act upon our recommenda­
tion to make ·this area an industrial area anyway in our General 
Plan update? 

CHAIRMAN: Mr. Director, I think it appeared in the newspaper 
just recently that our_draft to the County Council has been 
returned to the Department and the Commission for certain items 
of clarification, so would you like to discuss that now or a little 
bit later? . 

FUKE: Very briefly maybe I can respond to Commissioner 
Paris' question tha t we did transmit the entire docket up to the 
County Council. The Council Chairman has asked us to flag out 
certain items to facilitate the review of the County Council. 
This is being done and we will be formally retransmitting the 
entire docket, including the hearing transcripts to the Council 
next week Monday. As far as the timetable on when the Council 
is scheduled to act on the proposed revisions to the General 
Plan, I would 
don't know. 

like to defer responding to that because I really 

CHAIRMAN: 
did you have 

Okay, further questions of Mr. 
any questions of Mr. Carvalho? 

Carvalho? Staff, 

PIIANAIA: No. 

CHAIRMAN: Okay, Gary, we ask that you remain seated 
is a public hearing and there may be some questions that 
from the public that we'd like to ask you to respond to. 

as this 
come up 

NAKANO: Mr. Chairman, I have one more question of the staff. 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, please proceed. 

NAKANO: I wasn't a member then when this was approved, but 
why did they go 5 years only at a time? 

PIIANAIA: Okay, going through the transcript from the State 
Land Use Commission's action meeting, a concern was raised about 
using the Special Permit process for an industrial use; and some 
of the Commissioners felt that there should be more restrictions 
on this use and that perhaps it should be a State Land Use Boundary 
amendment rather than a Special Permit; and they had a considerable, 
very lengthy discussion and it's rather difficult to figure out 
why they really did it, except that they wanted some kind of 
control and they figured that at that time the lease was for 5 
years, so they'd make it concurrent with that. 

CHAIRMAN: Sidney? 

~0~~ ; Ilima, according to the transcripts and I'm just 
trying to reunderstand what the terms of the Special Permit, you 
know, for 5-year limitation is all about, is it 5 years to get 
the project off the ground or is that once Mr. Caravalho gets 
his project off the ground that he can't stay there for more 
than 5 years? 
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PIIANAIA: It's giving him a 5-year expiration date for the 
Special Permit. 

PUKE: So the operation is really temporary then; and 
what the applicant is requesting for is to increase it from, 
let him stay there in a sense if he establishes tomorrow, let 
him stay there for an additional 9 more years? 

PIIANAIA: Right. The other concern that State Land Use Com-
mission had was whether the County would actually rezone this or 
support an amendment to urban and rezone this area to industrial. 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioners, any further questions of either 
the staff or again of Mr. Carvalho? If. none,. ladies . and gentlemen, 
this is a public hearing on the request of Gary's Automotive Service 
to amend their Special Permit No. 78-292. The chair at this time 
would like to invite anyone who wishes to testify either for or 
against this application to so indicate by raising his hand. 
Members of the Commission, there does not appear to be any public 
testimony concerning this application to amend the Chair will 
entertain a motion to either continue the public hearing or close 
the public hearing. Commissioner Murakami. 

MURAKAMI: I move that the public hearing be closed. 

CHAIRMAN: · Thank you. Is there a second? 

NAKANO: Second. 

CHAIRMAN: It has been moved by Commissioner Murakami and seconded 
by Commissioner Nakano that the public hearing be closed. All those 
in favor so signify by saying aye? 

COMMISSIONERS: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN: Oppose, same sign? Public hearing is closed. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Irma Sumera 
Secretary Pro Tern

c:1~v~ 
Laurie Viveiros 
Recorder 

ATTEST: 

William F. Mielcke 
Chairman, Planning Commission 
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PLANNING COMMISSION 

Planning Department 
County of Hawaii 

MINUTES 
January 11, 1979 

The Planning Commission met in regular session at 10:04 a.m. in 
the County Councilroom, County Building, South Hilo, Hawaii, 
with Chairman William F. Mielcke presiding. 

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABSENT: Ex-officio Member 
(Left at 1:10 p.m. and Akira Fujimoto 
returned at 1:29 p.m.) 

J. Walsh Hanley 
Bert H. Nakano 
Alfredo Orita 
William H. Paris, Jr. 
Charles H. Sakamoto, Jr. 

Sidney M. Fuke, Director (Left at 1:10 p.m. and 
returned at 1:29 p.m.) 

Norman Hayashi, Planner 
Keith Kato, Planner (Left at 4:27 p.m.) 
William Moore, Planner (From 7:02 p.m.) 

Stephen Menezes, Deputy Corporation Counsel 
(Left at 10:20 a.m.) 

Sandra Fechter, Deputy Corporation Counsel 
David Murakami, representing Ex-officio Member Edward 

Harada (From 1:02 p.m.) 

and approximately 16 people in attendance at 10:04 a.m., 
3 people at 1:02 p.m., 9 people at 3:33 p.m., and 56 
people at 7:02 p.m. 

MINUTES: It was moved by Commissioner Sakamoto and 
seconded by Commissioner Paris that the minutes 

of November 16, 1978, November 29, 1978, and November 30, 1978, 
be approved as circulated; motion carried. 

All those testifying were duly sworn in. 

REPORTS: Planning Director Puke stated that Jean Madden 
is appealing the decision made on the variance 

application. The appeal will be scheduled in February or March 
when the Planning Board of Appeals has a quorum. 

In the reconsideration motion made for the Joan Aanavi variance 
application, Deputy Corporation Counsel Menezes advised that the 
Supreme Court holds that in the absence of statutory authority, the 
Planning Commission, acting in a quasi-judicial capacity, is without 
power to reconsider a final decision on its own motion. Therefore 
he advised that the Commission should be very certain of their 
decision. Another solution was to seek statutory authority per­
mitting reconsideration, but he did not believe that an amendment 
to the Commission rules and regulations would be sufficient. 

The Chair ruled that the motion to reconsider was out of order and 
that the variance originally granted for the Aanavi application stands. 

EX HIB IT ,J 



Staff then read the recommendation for approval on file. 

It was moved by Commissioner Nakano and seconded by Commissioner 
Sakamoto that the application for GAF Corporation for a PDP be 
approved for the reasons and conditions outlined by the staff. 
A roll call vote was taken and mition carried with six ayes. 

AMENDMENT TO Application of Gary's Automotive Service, Inc., 
SPECIAL PERMIT to amend Special Permit 78-292 which allowed the 
NO. 78-292 establishment of an auto body repair shop, truck 

✓ GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE repair, and vehicle storage area on approximately 
SERVICE, INC. four (4) acres of land situated within the State 
WAIKOLOA, SOUTH Land Use Agricultural District. The request is 
KOHALA amend the life of the Special Permit from 5 years 

to 10 years. The area involved is the former 
site of Island Dairy, located along the makai side of the Mamalahoa 
Highway, in the vicinity of the entrance road to the Waimea-Kohala 
Airport, Waikoloa, South Kohala, TMK: 6-8-01: portion of 8 •. 

Staff read recommendation on file. 

It was moved by Commissioner Orita and seconded by Commissioner Hanley 
that a favorable recommendation be sent to the State Land Use Commissi c. :­
based on the staff's recommendation and with the condition that all 
other conditions originally approved remain in effect. A roll call 
vote was taketi and motion carried with six ayes. 

RECESS: The Chair called a recess at 11:59 a.m. 

RECONVENED: The meeting reconvened at 1:02 p.m. 

VARIANCE Preliminary hearing on the application of Eugene 
EUGENE YAP Yap for a variance to allow the construction of 
KANAUEUE, NORTH garage with a sideyard setback of 11+ feet in 
KONA lieu of the minimum requirement of twenty (20) 

feet as stipulated within the Agricultural (A-Sa) 
zoned district. The property involved is located approximately 
3,200 feet mauka of Mamalahoa Highway, above the Kona Hospital com­
plex, Kanaueue, North Kona, TMK: 7-9-10:5. 

It was moved by Commissioner Hanley and seconded by Commissioner 
Orita that we defer discussion of this application until · such time 
as the applicant can be present with the notation that staff is 
recommending denial; motion carried. 

VARIANCE Preliminary hearing on the application of Albert 
ALBERT AND GEORGE and George Auyong for a variance to allow the 
AUYONG creation of two (2) lots with building site 
WAIMEA, SOUTH average widths of 192.52 feet in lieu of the 
KOHALA minimum requirement of 200 feet as stipulated 

within the Agricultural 5-acre (A-Sa) zoned 
district. The property involved is located along the North side of 
Mamalahoa Highway, approximately 800 feet Hamakua side of Fukushima 
Store, Pu'ukapu Homesteads, 1st Series, Waimea, South Kohala, 
TMK: 6-4-01:38. 

Staff read the background report and recommendation to set up for a 
p_ublic hearing on file. 



STATE OF HAWAII 
LAND USE COMMISSION 

Suite 1795 
Pacific Trade Center 

190 S. King Street 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 

February 13, 1979 

Mr. Sidney Fuke, Planning Director 
Hawaii County Planning Department 
25 Aupuni Street 
Hilo, Hawaii 96720 

Dear Mr. Fuke: 

Enclosed is a Notice of Land Use Commission meeting and the 
Agenda for the Meeting. 

Please note that petitions 

SP79-330 - MINOLU R. CHENG, M.D. 

SP79-331 - STATE OF HAWAII, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

SP79-332 - STANLEY S. SHIMIZU 

SP~9-334 - HENRY OPUKAHAIA SCHOOL 

- GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, INC. 

A78-441 PACIFIC HAWAIIAN, LTD. 

will be acted on at that time. 

Should you have any questions on these matters, please contact 
this office. 

Enclosure - Agenda 



STATE OF HAWAII 
LAND USE COMMISSION 

Suite 1795 
Pacific T~ade Center 

190 s. King Street 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 

February 13, 1979 

Mr. Gary R. Caravalho 
Gary's Automotive Service; Inc. 
P. o. Box 1030 
Kamuela, Hawaii 96743 

Dear Mr. Caravalho: 

Enclosed is a Notice of Land Use Commission meeting and the 
Agenda for the Meeting. 

Please note that petition 

SP78-292 - GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, .· INC. 

will be acted on at that time. 

Should you have any questions on this matter, please contact 
this off ice. 

Very truly yours, 

~ 

Executive Officer 

Enclosure - Agenda 



STATE OF HAWAII 
LAND USE COMMISSION 

NOTIFICATION OF LAND USE COMMISSION MEETING 

DATE, TIME & PLACE 

February 21, 1979 - 9:30 a.m. 
Conference Room, 9th Floor 

Kamamalu Building 
250 South King Street 

Honolulu, Hawaii 

A G E N D A 

I. ACTION 

1. A78-442 - Mitsugi and Fusako Yamamura (Maui) (Hearing Officer) 

To reclassify approximately 5.6 acres of land presently 
in the Agricultural District into the Rural District at 
Haiku, Maui for a residential subdivision. 

2. SP79-329 - Kauai Bible Church (Kauai) 

To allow the establishment of a church on approximately 
1.25 acres'of land· situated within the State Land Use 
Agricultural District at Omao, Koloa, Kauai. 

3. SP79-330 - Minolu R. Cheng (Hawaii) 

To allow the establishment of a medical office on 
approximately .934 acre of land situated within the 
State Land Use Rural District at Keauhou 1st, North Kona, 
Hawaii. 

4. SP79-331 - State of Hawaii, Department of Education (Hawaii) 

To allow the continued use of three (3) school sites 
situated within the State Land Use Agricultural District 
at Honaunau, Hookena and Kohala for public educational 
purposes. 

5. SP79-332 - Stanley S. Shimizu (Hawaii) 

To allow the establishment of a SO' x 60' freezer/office 
building on one (1) acre of land situated within the 
State Land Use Agricultural District at Keei 2nd, South 
Kona, Hawaii. 

6. SP79-334 - Henry Opukahaia School (Hawaii) 

To allow the establishment of a private school on ten (10) 
acres of land situated within the State Land Use Agricul­
tural District at Keaau, Puna, Hawaii. 
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SP78-292 - Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. (Hawaii) 

To extend the life of the Special Permit from five (5) 
years to ten (10) years to allow the establishment of 
an auto body repair shop, truck repair and vehicle 
storage area on approximately four (4) acres of land 
situated within the State Land Use Agricultural District 
at Waikoloa, South Kohala, Hawaii. 

8. A78-441 - Pacific Hawaiian, Ltd. (Hawaii) 

To reclassify approximately 8.0 acres of land presently 
in the Agricultural District into the Urban District at 
Ponahawai, South Hilo, Hawaii for a neighborhood shopping 
center. 

II. MISCELLANEOUS 

1. Adoption of Minutes 

2. Meeting Schedule 

2/13/79 - A COPY OF THIS AGENDA WAS MAILED TO ALL PERSONS AND 
ORGAl.~IZATIONS ON THE ATTACHED MAILING LISTS: 

1. STATEWIDE 2. HAWAII 3. MAUI 4. KAUAI 



COUNTY OF 
HAWAII 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
25 AUPUNI STREET • HILO, HAWAII 96720 HERBERT T. MATA YOSHI 

Mayor 

SIDNEY M. FUKE 
Director 

DUANE KANUHA 
Deputy Director 

January 29, 1979. 

r,, ....... 
Mr. Gordan Furutani l .•. 

--- (f)Executive Officer r; ··1, 
Land Use Commission 

c..­

190 South King Street > 
j -

Suite 1795 
Honolulu, HI 96813 

Dear Mr. Furutani: 

Amend Special Permit 78-292 (LUC 384) 
Petitioner: Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. 
Tax Map Key 6-8-01:portion of 8 

The Planning Commission at its meeting of January 11, 1979, 
considered your request to amend Special Permit 78-292 which 
allowed the establishment of an auto body repair shop, truck 
repair, and vehicle storage area on approximately four (4) acres 
of land situated within the State Land Use Agricultural District. 
The request is to amend the life of the Special Permit from 5 years 
to 10 years. The area involved is the former site of Island Dairy, 
located along the makai side of the Mamalahoa Highway, in the 
vicinity of the entrance road to the Waimea-Kohala Airport, 
Waikoloa, South Kohala, Hawaii. 

The Commission voted to send a favorable recommendation to 
the State Land Use Commission since they felt that the proposed 
use would not adversely affect surrounding properties nor burden 
public agencies in the provision of public facilities and utilities, 
that unusual conditions have arisen wherein there is a need for 
additional industrial areas ~o serve the Waimea community, and that 
the request is consistent with the pertinent General Plan policies 
and standards. The requested extension to ten (10) years would 
not be contrary to the reasons for the Canuission \5 original favorable 
recommendation. 



Mr. Gordan Furutani 
Page 2 

Based on the transcripts of the State Land Use Commission's 
March 7, 1978 meeting, it appears that the five (5) year life­
span was imposed to allow re-evaluation of the Special Permit 
based on whether the area becomes a designated industrial area. 
Since the approval of the Special Permit the Planning Department 
with the concurrence of this Commission, has recommended that an 
area including the subject property be designated as Industrial 
on the General Plan Land Use Pattern Allocation Guide Map. Thus, 
after the date of the State Land Use Commission action on the 
Special Permit the Planning Department and the Planning Commission 
have gone on record sanctioning the industrial use of the area. 
Further, the ten (10) year period will maintain the State Land 
Use Commission's opportunity to re-evaluate the Special 
Permit. 

Based on these considerations, the Commission recommends 
that the time condition imposed by the State Land Use Commission be 
extended to ten (10) years from the effective date of amendment. 

The Commission further recommended that the request be given a 
favorable recommendation subject to the condition that all other 
conditions originally approved remain in effect. 

Enclosed are copies of the Exhibits from the subject docket. 

Sincerely, 

WILLIAM F. MIELCKE 
Chairman, Planning Commission 

lgv 
Enclosures 
cc Mr. Gary Caravalho 

Land Use Division, DPED 
Kona Service Office 



LIST OF EXHIBITS - GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, INC. 
AMEND SPECIAL PERMIT 78-292 

A. Applicant's request to amend Special Permit 78-292 

B. Departmental acknowledgement letter 11/29/78 

C. Letter sent to the surrounding property owner 12/1/78 

D. Letter to the applicant 12/1/78 

D-1. Public Hearing Notice 

E. Voting Sheet - close hearing 

F. Minutes 12/13/78 

G. Transcript 12/13/78 

H. Letter to the applicant 12/15/78 

I. Letter to the applicant 12/19/78 

J. Staff Background 

K. Staff Recommendation 

L. Location Map 

M. Voting Sheet 

N. Minutes 1/11/79 

o. Letter to the applicant 1/12/79 



Sarys Automotive Service, Inc. 
P. o. Box 1030 
Kamuela, Hawaii 96743 

November 8, 1978 

Planning Department 
County of Hawaii 
Hilo, Hawaii 96720 

Pequest: 

To modify conditions of said terms. 

Special Permit #TMK 6-8-Cl: Portman of 8 from 5 years 
to 16 years. 

Reference: 

March '9, 1978, letter from Land Use Commission, Gordon 
: urutani, to Hawaii Planning Department. 

Dear Sir, 

ro to the terms of purchase with Bank Of Hawaii, on the 
old Island Dairy site I~ here by requesting the A:.anning 
De part ment to take into consideration that ~~e terms (loan) 
is for l C years, which they have already cut it down from 15 
years to 10 years. 

As you can see the bank is hesitant in re l easing the 
funds be cause of only Five ye ar per mi t. Eowever i f the 
Depart ment wi l l ext end t he permit to 10 years or of fer an 
option of renual fo r the other Five. This presently puts 
the Bank a nd S. B. A. in a better position to re l eas e the 
funds. 

This month makes on year s ince we have been negotiating. 
Mr. Frank Costa, is very i mpa tient to recieve his '.:'!oney. 

G.ii'C/mjc 

EXHlBll /t 
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November 29, 1978 

Mr. Gary R. Caravalho 
Garys Automotive Service, Inc. 
P. o. Box 1030 
Kamuela, HI 96743 

Dear Mr. Caravalho: 

/special Permit 
TMK: 6-8-01: oortion of 8 

Th.is is to acknowledge receipt of your request for an 
amenc11'1ent to the time cond ition proposed on your State Land 
Use Special Permit. 

Inas~ uch as the processin0 of this amendmcr.t to lenqthen 
the li fe of the Special Permit will r equire a public hearing 
a $100 filing fe e mus t accompnny the r eque·s t. Upon receipt 
of the filing fee your request will be complete and process­
ing can con~ence. 

Should you have any ques tions concerning this matter, 
please contact staff planners Ilima Piianaia or Keith Kato 
at 961- 8288 or at th~ above address. 

KK:gs 



December 1, 1978 

Mr. Richard Smart 
Parker Ranch 
Kamuela, HI 96743 

Dear Mr. Smart: 

Amend Special Permit 78-292 (LUC 384) 
Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. 
Tax Map Key 6-8-01:portion of 8 

This is to inform you as a surrounding property owner that 
a public hearing for the above request to amend Special Perr.1it 
78-292 which allowed the establisl~ent of an auto body repair 
shop, truck repair and vehicle storage area on avproximately 
four acres of land situated within the State Land Use Agricultural 
District. The request is to amend the life of the Special Permit 
from 5 years to 10 years. 

The public hearing will be held on Wednesday, December 13, 
1978 at the Waimea Civic Center Conference Room, Waimea, South 
Kohala, Hawaii,beginning at 10:00 a.m•• 

Sincerely, 

~~o~· 
SIDNEY PUKE 
Director 

lgv 
" ,'' 

/ .' 
/ 

DEC i - HlttJ 
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December 1, 1978 

Mr. Gary R. Caravalho 
Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. 
P. o. Box 1030 
Kamuela, HI 96743 

Dear Mr. Caravalho: 

Notice of a Public Hearing 
Amend Special Permit 70-292 (LUC 384) 
'l'ax l•1ap Key 6-8-01 :portion of 8 

This is to inform you that your request to amend Special 
Permit 78-292 (LUC 38 4) has been scheduled for a public hearing. 
Said hearing amon J others will be held beginning at lU:00 a.m. 
on \'ledn esday, Decernber 13, 1978 at the 1-iaimea Civic Center 
Conference Room, Waimea, South Kohala, Hawaii. 

The presence of a representative will be appreciated in 
order that all questions relative to the request may be clarified. 

A copy of the hearing notice and agenda is enclosed for your 
information. 

Sincer~ly, 

·~~~- ~ 
SIDNEY :]>KE 
Director 

lgv 
Enclos ure 
cc State Land Use Commission 

Land Use Uivision, DPED 



PUBLIC HEARINGS 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
COUNTY OF HA\vAI I 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of public hearings to be held by the 

Planning Commission of the County of Hawaii in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 5-4.3 of the Charter of the County of Hawaii. 

PLACE: Waimea Civic Center Conference Room, 
South I<ohala 

Waimea, 

DATE: Wednesday, December 13, 1978 

TIME: Item 1: 
Item 2: 
Item 3: 

10:00 a.m. 
10:30 a.m. 
Proceeding to begin at 1:00 p.m.; 
testimony to be taken at 7:00 p.m. 

public 

The purpose of the public hearings is to afford all interested 

persons a reasonable opportunity to be heard on the following 

requests: 

1. PETITIONER: GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, INC. 

LOCATION: Former site of Island Dairy, along the makai 

side of the Mamalahoa Highway, in the vicinity 

of the entrance road to the Waimea-Kohala 

Airport, Waikoloa, South Kohala. 

TMK: 6-8-01:portion of a. 

PURPOSE: Request to amend Special Permit 78-292 which 

allowed the establishment of an auto body 

repair shop, truck repair and vehicle storage 

area on approximately four acres of land 

situated within the State Land Use Agricul­

tural District. The request is to amend 

the life of the Special Permit from 5 years 

to 10 years. 

EXHIBIT D-1 



PETITIONER: 

LOCATION: 

TMK: 

PURPOSE: 

3. PETITIONER: 

LOCATION: 

TMK: 

PURPOSE: 

JOAN AANAVI 

Along the south side of the Mamalahoa 

Highway, approximately 1,600 feet west 

of the Kamuela Haven Subdivision, 

Pu'ukapu Homesteads, 2nd Series, South 

Kohala. 

6-4-18:42 

Variance to allow the creation of two 

lots with areas of 1 acre and 2.4 acres, 

respectively, in lieu of the minimum 

requirement of 40 acres as stipulated 

within the Agricultural 40-acre (A-40a) 

z9ned district. Also requested is relief 

to allow a 12.5-foot pavement within a 

20-foot easement in lieu of the minimum 

requirements of 20 feet and 50 feet, 

respectively. 

YS ROCK, INC. 

Along the east side of the Kawaihae Village 

Road, approximately 500 feet north of the 

intersection of the Kawaihae Village Road 

and the old Kawaihae-Puako Road, Kawaihae 

2nd, South Kohala. 

6-2-01:portion of 64 

Use Permit to allow quarrying, crushing 

and related activities on approximately 

13 acres of land within the Agricultural 

40-acre (A-40a) zoned district. 



Maps showi~g the general locations and boundaries of the areas 

under consideration and/or plans of the proposed developments are on 

file in the office of the Planning Department in the County Building 

at 25 Aupuni Street, Hilo, Hawaii, and are open to inspection during 

office hours. All comments should be filed with the Planning Commis­

sion before that date, or in person at the public hearing. 

PLANNING COMMISSION, 
WILLIAM F. MIELCKE, Chairman 
By SIDNEY M. FUKE 
Planning Director 

(Hawaii Tribune-Herald: December 3 and 11, 1978) 
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RECORD OF VOTING 

PLANNING COMMISSION. 
County of Hawaii 

Date ___o_e_c_e_m_b_e_r__1_3_,_1_9_7_a____________________ 

GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, INC. - Special PErmit 78-292Petitioner 

Preliminary hearing v Public hearing Request Actio 

ACTION: Approve 

---Deny 

Defer 

Continue 

Schedule for public hearing 

Other: 

Commissioners Aye . No •Excused Abstain 

.. 
FUJIMOTO, Shigeru 

HANLEY, J. Walsh 

JITCHAKU, Lorraine R. 

MURAKAMI, Haruo JA6lH'A 
-

NAKANO, Bert H. J~ I 

ORITA, Alfredo -· 
PARIS, William Jr. 

SAKAMOTO, Cha rles 

MIELClm, William F. 

tX ~' IBIT £_ 
,, {. I! ' 



PLANN ING COMMISSION 

Planning Department 
Count y of Hawaii 

!UNUTES EXHIBIT F 
De.cemoer 1 3 , 197 3 

The P :Lannin,J Commi :s sio n met ir. regular se s si m a t 10: 00 a. m. 
in t h e Waimea Ci vie Cen1:~~r Conference Roon., /aimea, South Kohala, 
Hawai i, with Chairman William F. Mielcke pre .:; iding. 

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABS ENT: Ex-officio Member 
J. Walsh Hanley Akira Fujimoto 
Shigeru Fujimoto 
Lorraine R. Jitchaku 
Lorraine R. Jitchaku (From 10:12 a . m.) 
Haruo Murakami 
Bert H. Nakano 
Alfredo Orita 
William J. Paris, Jr. 
Charles H. Sakamoto, Jr. 

Sidney M. Fuke, Director (From 10 : 35 a.m.) 
Ilima Pi i anaia, Planner 

Stephen Menezes, Deputy Corporatio 1 Counsel 
(From 1 0:35 a.m.) 

David Murakami, representing Ex-of f icio Member Edward 
Harada 

and a pproximately 6 people in attendance at 10:12 a.m., 
8 people at 10:50 a.m., 12 people at 1:10 p.m . , and 
3 pe ople at 7: 09 p.m. 

MINUTES: It was moved b y Commissioner Sakamoto a nd 
seconded by Commis s ioner Mur akami that t he 
,,c , , ' ,c: t-, c 7 -· pr<·· · .. 6 ,,. r ; · r:111 ;:it- .-, d : ""',--.• :i on 



Commissioner Orita's question regarding the c ause of the fire that 
destroyed part of the pavilion was left unans wered since t here was 
no one present representing Parks and Recreat ion. 

It was clarified that the entire proper ty is within the SMA area. 

David Murakami informed the Commissioners tha t there were no plans 
for digging a new trench and the existing ces spool will be utilized. 
But if a new 4-inch, 320 feet wasteline were to be put in, it would 
cost between $8,000 to $10,000. 

I~ was moved by Commissioner Paris and seconded by Commissioner Orita 
that the public hearing be closed; mot i on car ried. 

It was moved by Commissioner Orita and seconded by Commissioner 
Fujimoto that the application be approved fo r the reasons and the 
conditions outlined by 1:he staff. A roll cal l vote was taken and 
motion carried with nim} ayes. 

AMENDMENT TO Pub ~l ic hearing on the request by Gary ' s Automotive 
SPECIAL PERMIT Service, Inc. to amend Special Permit 78-29 2 which 
78-292 allowed the establishmen t of an auto body r e pair 
GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE shop, truck repair, and vehicle storage area on 
SERVICE, INC. approximately four acres of land situated wi thin 
WAIKOLOA, SOUTH the State Land Use Agricultural Distr i ct. The 
KOHALA request is to amend the life of the Special 

Perrnit from 5 year s to 10 years. The area i nvolved 
is the former site o f I -:; land Dairy, l ocated along the maka i sid e of 
the Mamalahoa Highway, Ln the vicinity of the entrance road to the 
Waimea-Kohala Airport, Waikoloa, South Kohala, TMK: 6-8-01:por t ion of 8 . 

Staff presented background on file. 

Staff clarified that a s a · condition, it could be stipulated tha t out 
of the ten years, five years could be the r e -examining period. 

Commissioner Hanley expcessed concern over t he inconsistency o f 
keeping the industrial a rea away from the po pulated area l ike in 
Kana. But Planning Director Fuke informed h im that the functio ns 
of both the Kona Airport and the Kamuela Ai r port are di f ferent in 
that the Kona Airport i s tourist-oriented. 

The petitioner, Gary Carvalho, added that t h e Manager o f Parke r 
Ranch informed him that there are plans for industrial uses in 
the subject area. 

Mr. Carvalho stated tha t the bank does not want to releas e the 
money until the ten-year life of the Speci a l Permit is granted. 
Commissioner Hanley me n tioned that thr ough h is experience , it would 
be best to consider a 10-year period without any kind of o p tion 
because it would not be s a tis f actory to the bank and the SBA. 

Commissioner Nak ano wanted to know why the State Land Use Commission 
approved the Special Permi t for 5 yea rs o nly . Staff clar i f ied t hat 
that was the length o f the lease, so they rod.de it concurr ent with that. 

Commissioner Mura k ami moved and Commi ssio ner seconded tha t the p ublic 
hearing be closed ; mo t i on carried. 
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PLANNING COMMISSION 

Planning Department 
County of Hawaii 

HEARING TRANSCRIPT 
December 13, 1978 

A regularly advertised public hearing, on the application of 
Gary's Automotive Service, Inc., was called to order at 10:30 a.m. 
in the Waimea Civic Center Conference Room, Waimea, South 
Kohala, Hawaii, with Chairman William F. Mielcke presiding. 

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABSENT: Ex-officio Member 
J. Walsh Hanley Akira Fujimoto 
Shigeru Fujimoto 
Lorraine R. Jitchaku 
Haruo Murakami 
Bert H. Nakano 
Alfredo Orita 
William J. Paris, Jr. 
Charles H. Sakamoto 

Sidney M. Fuke, Director (From 10:35 a.m.) 
Ilima Piianaia, Planner 

David Murakami, representing Ex-officio Member Edward 
Harada 

Stephen Manezes, Deputy Corporation Counsel (From 
10:35 a.m.) 

and approximately 9 people in attendance 

CHAIRMAN: Item two on the agenda, public hearing on the 
request by Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. to amend Special 
Permit 78-292 which allowed the establishment of an auto body 
repair shop, truck repair, and vehicle storage area on approx­
imately four acres of land situated within the State Land Use 
Agricultural District. The request is to amend the life of 
the Special Permit from 5 years to 10 years. The area involved 
is the former site of Island Dairy, located along the makai 
side of the Mamalahoa Highway, ·in the vicinity of the entrance 
road to the Waimea-Kohala Airport, Waikoloa, South Kohala, 
TMK: 6-8-01:portion of 8. Staff? 

PIIANAIA: (Presented background on file.) 

CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Ilima. · If our recommendations for 
the General Plan are adopted by the County Council, would this 
be necessary? 

PIIANAIA: No, because this is a special permit which allows 
it; and if you'll remember, one of the reasons that you voted 
to recommend approval of this in the first place was that it 
was a suitable area for -industrial, in keeping with the General 
Plan designation. 

CHAIRMAN: So in a way, this is just academic, if in fact 
everything ~oes through? 

EXHIBIT 6 



PIIANAIA: Well, the area would still have to be put into 
a State Land Use Urban District and then rezoning would have to 
be sought. 

CHAIRMAN: Okay, Commissioners, do you have any questions 
of the staff? 

MURAKAMI: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Murakami. 

MURAKAMI: Ilima, in other words, what you're saying is 
that if we approve, conditions can be attached where it says 
you know, the beginning when we gave them we gave five-years 
because of the reexamining period, now if we were to give the 
ten years, the other five years can be stipulated as to 
reexamining period? 

PIIANAIA: That could be a condition. As it was pointed 
out in the staff's background, this special permit went to the 
Land Use Commission for action without any time stipulation, 
any life to the permit, and when the State Land Use Commission 
reviewed the docket they, I guess, had enough doubt in their 
mind about this area being used industrially, although this 
Commission felt it was in appropriate use, that they stipulated 
a 5-year life to the permit. 

MURAKAMI: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN: Thank you. Commissioners, any further questions 
of the staff? 

ORITA: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Orita. 

ORITA: Ilima, on January 12, 1973, the permit, the 
Special Permit that was asked for, and on January 31, 1978, 
"A. The Commission voted to send a favorable recommendation .•. " 
so, from 1978, that was early part of this right? 

PIIANAIA: Correct. 

ORITA: So actually that's still in effect until 1983? 

PIIANAIA: Yes, provided that other conditions are met, which 
the petitioner is trying to meet other conditions at this time. 
His main hangup is, as he stated, the lending institutions would 
not finance him for a 5-year period. 

ORITA: Okay, thank you. 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioner Hanley. 

HANLEY: Yes, Ilima, there seems to be something that is a 
little inconsistent to me. It seems we were going through an idea 
in Kona of keeping the industrial away from ·the approaches to the 
populated area from the airport. Now are we being inconsistent in 
putting industrial immediately adjacent to the entrance of the 
airport? 



PIIANAIA: I'll defer that to the Planning Director. 

CHAIRMAN: Mr. Fuke, good morning, welcome. 

FUKE: I think that, Commissioner Hanley, the point that 
you raised is an intere sting one. But the first concern is that 
in a situation for Kailua, of course, it's widely conceded that 
Keahole Airport is going to be, if not already is, a major 
resort oriented airport as distinguished from the Kamuela Airport 
which has much more of a, I guess, agricultural or local or rural 
type of orientation. The other one is that, well, okay, so the 
first one is more in relation to the functions of both the air­
ports. The other concern was that primarily in looking at the 
entire Waimea area, it was felt that this area would be more 
suitable, not so much from the standpoint about the airport 
questions but when you look at it, what's there on the side 
that goes down to Kawaihae and what is there on the Hamakua 
end, and it's basically agriculturally oriented and so the 
thought was to have a detached industrial area sufficiently 
removed from the basic core community; and it was felt that 
this location was the most appropriate. 

We do realize, however, that there is that some amount of conceptual 
inconsistency with the Kona situation except that as I mentioned 
earlier, the functions of the l •Jna Airport would obviously be 
different from that of the function of the Kamuela Airport. 

HANLEY: Is Hilo a tourist oriented airport or is there a 
third category? 

FUKE: I think in the situation of Hilo, I would consider 
that a combination of the first and the second category because 
Hilo to some extent, although it's a major, you know, the entry 
way for the visitors right now, it also functions as a primary 
commercial center for the city of Hilo. Hilo, I think we all 
know, is increasingly becoming much more, well, or has been 
traditionally and still is, more of a commerce center, much 
more than it is a resort area, unlike the Kona coast. 

CHAIRY.IAN: Commissioners, any further questions you'd like 
to refer to the staff? If there are none, the Chair at this 
time would like to call the applicant or a representative of 
the applicant forward. Yes, we'll swear you in if you'll raise 
your right hand. Do you s wear to tell the truth and nothing but 
the truth on the application now before the Hawaii County Planning 
Commission? 

CARVALHO: I do. 

CHAIRMAN: Please state your name into the microphone. 

CARVALHO: Gary Carvalho from Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. 

CHAIRMAN: Mr. Carvalho, you've heard the staff's background 
report on your r e que st to amend your Special Permit. Do you 
have anything to add for the benefit of the Commission? 

CARVALHO: I've talked to the Manager of Parker Ranch and 
he has give n me some pla ns and idea s that Parker Ranch has and 
they do have intentions o f trying to push the industrial area 
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out ih that area, in the other 28 acres of that portion which 
is 33 point some thing acres; and the hope to, in the real near 
future, try to see if they c a n suble ase some of that land for 
indus trial. So I hope maybe that can be taken into consideration, 
what kind of plans Parker Ranch has. They're pulling back 28 acres 
in three years. Right now I do have the whole thing. For three 
years they plan on trying to subdivide that thing into industrial. 

CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Carvalho. Commissioners, do you 
have any questions that you would like to ask the applicant? 

MURAKAMI: Mr. Chairma n? 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Murakami. · 

MURAKAMI: Gary, would you agree to this, you know, the option 
of the other 5-year, optional for renewal, if that condition is 
put in? 

CARVALHO: I didn't understand. 

MURAKAMI: If the Department will extend the permit to 10 
years or offer an option of renewal term for the other 5 years, 
would you agree if we put that condition in? 

CARVALHO: Yes, I would agree. The only thing I think the 
lender would prefer if something more secure, like there would 
be another 5 years instead·of an option. I mean, as you can see, 
I think that option wouldn't be, it wouldn't kind of be sufficient 
to them, you know. 

MURAKAMI: It's just a condition for renewal, whether they 
will renew that nobody knows. 

CARVALHO: Well, see, the loan has been cut down from 15 years 
to 10 years already; and let's say if the Planning Department turns 
the other 5 years down, then this loan would either be, you know, 
in other words, I would have to make some fantastic payments to 
keep up the loan or either I'd have to just forget the deal. 

MURAKAMI: But you don't mind if the condition is, you're 
not disagreeing to the condition? 

CARVALHO: Yeah, I myself, an option, I would be happy with 
that, you know. 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Nakano. 

NAKANO: Gary, you already have a 10-year loan from the bank, 
is that right? 

CARVALHO: Right. They cut it down from 15 to 10 years. 

NAKANO: So, how does it affect you by your request here? 
You alre ady have your 10-year loan, so the bank is going to 
release the money to you. 

CARVALHO: But tha t's the holdup now. That's the only holdup. 
The y don't wa nt to r e l ease t he mone y because they feel 5 years is 
not sufficie nt e nough t o c a rry the loa n. 
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NAKANO: No, my question is you have an agreement already, 
loan agreement, am I right, with the bank? 

CARVALHO: It's just, you know, it's not a signed agreement. 
They're ready to release funds if we have something capable to what 
they want. 

NAK1'.NO: That's all I want to know. 

CHAIRMAN: Yeah, I guess, what he's saying Commissioner Nakano 
is is they're concerned with the full 10-year term. 

ORITA: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Orita. 

ORITA: Gary, you say that you do agree with that condition, 
do you think you need more time to confer with the bank to see if 
the bank would go along with that condition, and maybe you can 
more or less g·ive the point of view to the bank, to the loan 
institute? 

CARVALHO: Before I answer that, can I ask one more question. 
What would, now let's say if we have an option of 5, this option 
would be under certain conditions that if the industrial area 
would move to a different location then the option is no good, 
right? I think they would go along with the option providing 
it's just what I said, if the option, the stipulation in that, 
let's say in 5 years the industrial area moves out maybe by 
Shield Pacific or something, then I would have to move, right? 

CHAIRMAN: Staff, can you clarify? 

PIIANAIA: I'd just like to clarify that the request before 
you is to amend a condition which was imposed by the State Land 
Use Commission limiting the life of the Special Permit for 5 years. 
Basically, I think the Commission should remember that the purpose 
of the Special Permit is to allow an unusual and reasonable use 
within the State Land Use Agricultural District in this case; 
and whether a renewal would make any sense or what. You know, 
you're looking at the use and the use has been permitted already, 
the Special Permit has been acted upon and we're looking at amending 
it or the conditions set by the Land Use Commission. I don't know 
if that clarifies it. 

HANLEY: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Hanley. 

HANLEY: I think from experience with both the banks and 
the SBA, "· that it'd be safe to indicate that they would, neither 
one of them consider any kind of option as satisfactory unless 
it was the unilateral option in favor of Gary's Automotive, and 
that the Planning Commission and the Land Use Commission had 
no option to cancel. So it would be tantamount to, as far as 
our considera tion is concerned to granting the 10 years because 
the Planning Commission and the State Land Use Commission would 
not have any option to terminate the use after 5 years. So for 
purposes of consideration, I think it would be well to go ahead 
and consider just a 10-year period without any kind of option 
because it wouldn't be satisfactory to the bank and SBA. 
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CHAIRMAN: Okay, any further questions for Mr. Carvalho? 
Yes, Commissioner Paris. 

PARIS: I'd just like to ask our Planning Department head 
how long he thinks before the Council will act upon our recommenda­
tion to make ·this area an industrial area anyway in our General 
Plan update? 

CHAIRMAN: Mr. Director, I think it appeared in the newspaper 
just recently that our draft to the County Council has been 
returned to the Department and the Commission for certain items 
of clarification, so would you like to discuss that now or a little 
bit later? . 

FUKE: Verv briefly maybe I can respond to Commissioner 
Paris' question tha t we did transmit the entire docket up to the 
County Council. The Council Chairman has asked us to flag out 
certain items to facilitate the review of the County Council. 
This is b~ing done and we will be formally retransmitting the 
entire docket, including the hearing transcripts to the Council 
next week Monday. As far as the timetable on when the Council 
is scheduled to act on the proposed revisions to the General 
Plan, I would like to defer responding to that because I really 
don't know. 

CHAIRMAN: Okay, further questions of Mr. Carvalho? Staff, 
did you have any questions of Mr. Carvalho? 

PIIANAIA: No. 

CHAIRMAN: Okay, Gary, we ask that you remain seated as this 
is a public hearing and there may be some questions that come up 
from the public that we'd like to ask you to respond to. 

NAKANO: Mr. Chairman, I have one more question of the staff. 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, please proceed. 

NAKANO: I wasn't a member then when this was approved, but 
why did they go 5 years only at a time? 

PIIANAIA: Okay, going through the transcript from the State 
Land Use Commission's action meeting, a concern was raised about 
using the Special Permit process for an industrial use; and some 
of the Commissioners felt that there should be more restrictions 
on this use and that perhaps it should be a State Land Use Boundary 
amendment rather than a Special Permit; and they had a considerable, 
very lengthy discussion and it's rather difficult to figure out 
why they really did it, except that they wanted some kind of 
control and they figured that at that time the lease was for 5 
years, so they'd make it concurrent with that. 

CHAIRMAN: Sidney? 

~~- -~ ; Ilima, according to the transcripts and I'm just 
trying to reunde rstand what the terms of the Special Permit, you 
know, for 5-yea r limitation is all about, is it 5 years to get 
the proj e ct of f the ground or is that once Mr. Caravalho gets 
his proj ect off the ground that he can't stay there for more 
than 5 y e ars? 
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PIIANAIA: It's giving him a 5-year expiration date for the 
Special Permit. 

FUKE: So the operation is really temporary then; and 
what the applicant is requesting for is to increase it from, 
let him stay there in a sense if he establishes tomorrow, let 
him stay there for an additional 9 more years? 

PIIANAIA: Right. The other concern that State Land Use Com-
mission had was whether the County would actually rezone this or 
support an amendment to urban and rezone this area to industrial. 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioners, any further questions of either 
the staff or again of Mr. Carvalho? If none, ladies and gentlemen, 
this is a public hearing on the request of Gary's Automotive Service 
to amend their Special Permit No. 78-292. The chair at this time 
would like to invite anyone who wishes to testify either for or 
against this application to so indicate by raising his hand. 
Members of the Commission, there does not appear to be any public 
testimony concerning this application to amend the Chair will 
entertain a motion to either continue the public hearing or close 
the public hearing. Commissioner Murakami. 

MURAKAMI: I move that the public hearing be closed. 

CHAIRMAN: · Thank you. Is there a second? 

NAKANO: Second. 

CHAIRMAN: It has been moved by Commissioner Murakami and seconded 
by Commissioner Nakano that the public hearing be closed. All those 
in favor so signify by saying aye? 

COMMISSIONERS: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN: Oppose, same sign? Public hearing is closed. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Irma Sumera 
Secretary Pro Tern

c:1~v~ 
Laurie Viveiros 
Recorder 

ATTEST: 

William F. Mielcke 
Chairman, Planning Commission 
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Decenber 15, 1978 

Mr. Gary R. Caravalho 
Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. 
P.O. Box 1030 
Kamuela, HI 96743 

Dear Mr. Caravalho: · 

Amendment to Special Permit 78-292 
Tax Map Key 6-8-01:portion of 8 

The Planning Commission at its meeting of December 13, 
1978 held a duly advertised public hearing on your request 
to amend Special Permit 78-992 which allowed the establishment 
of an auto body repair shop, truck repair, and vehicle storage 
urea on approximately f our acres of land situated within the 
State Land Use Agricultural District. The request is to amend 
the life of the Special Permit from 5 years to 10 years. The 
area involved is the former site of Island Dairy, located along 
nhe makai side of the Hanalahoa Highway, in the vicinity of the 
entrance road to the Waimea-Kohala Airport, Waikoloa, South 
Kohala, Hawaii. 

In accordance with the provisions of Rule 6 of the Planning 
Commission, tlic Commission shall act on such petition not earlier 
than fifteen (15) days after the said public .hearing. 

We shall notify you when the Commission is ready to take action 
on your request. \ 

Sincerely, 
\ 

~ 
WILLIN-1 F. MIELCl<E 
Chairman, Planning Commission 

lgv 

cc State Land Use Commission 
Land Use Division, DPED 

DEC 1 8 1978 



December 19, 1978 

Mr. Gary R. Caravalho 
Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. 
P.O. 3ox 1030 
Kamuela, HI 96743 

Dear Mr. Caravalho: 

Amendment to Special Permi t 78-292 
Tax Map Key 6-8-Dl:portion of 8 

Your application will again be discussed on Thurs6ay, 
January 11, 197 9, by the Planning Cornrr.issior.. T-he meeting 
will be held in the County Councilroorn, County Duilding, South 
Hilo, Hawaii, and is scheduled to begin at 10:00 a.rn. 

You will be notified of the Cor:iiniss icn' s decision. 

A copy of the ag~nda is enclosed for your information. 

~--Sincerely, 
~- ~~ C)\ M'\.Lv-._, \ 1 ~"\~ 

. () 
Sidney M. Fuke 
Planning Director 

smn 

Enclosure 

cc: State Land Use Commission 
Land Use Division, DPED 

EXHIBIT r· 
OEC 2 0 1978 



SPECIAL PERMIT AMENTIMENT: GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, INC. 

The petitioner, Gary's Automotive Service, Incorporated, is 

requesting an amendment to Special Permit 78-292 which allowed the 

establishment of an auto body repair shop, truck repair and vehicle 

storage area on approximately four (4) acres of land situated 

within the State Land Use Agricultural District. The request is 

to amend the life of the Special Permit from five (5) years to ten 

(10) years. The area involved is the former site of Island Dairy, 

along the makai side of the Mamalahoa Highway, in the vicinity of the 

entrance road to the Waimea-Kohala Airport, Waikoloa, South Kohala 

(TMK: 6-8-01: portion of 8)0 

For the Commission's information, a public hearing for Special 

Permit 78-292 was held on January 12, 1978, by the County of Hawaii 

Planning Commission. On January 31, 1978, the Pianning Commission 

voted to send a favorable recommendation on the request to the 

State Land Use Commission subject to nine (9) conditionso 

At its March 7, 1978, meeting the State Land Use Commission 

approved the Special Permit subject to the conditions imposed by 

the County Planning Commission and subject further to the additional 

condition that the Special Permit shall be valid for a period not 

to exceed five (5) years from the effective date of approval. 

Based on a review of the transcripts of the March 7, 1978, 

State Land Use Commission meeting~imary concern, in relation to 
~ 

the five (5) year time condition, was whether the site is actually 



a suitable industrial area. The five (5) year review period provides 

for a re-examination of the Special Permit to determine whether it 

conforms to the industrial area designated by the County of Hawaii. 

For the Commissioner's information the Planning Department, 
~ 
~ the concurrence of this Commission, has recommended that the area 

in the vicinity of the subject property be designated as industrial 

in the General Plan revision program. Essentially this recommenda­

tion merely shifts the existing industrial designation northward to 

the vicinity of the Kamuela Airport. 

The petitioner is - requesting that this additional condition 

be amended so that the life of the Special Permit is extended to 

a ten-year period. In support of the subject request, the petitioner 

has stated, in part, the following: 

"Do (sic) to the terms of purchase with Bank of Hawaii, 

on the old Island Dairy site I'm here by requesting the 

Planning Department to take into consideration that the terms 

(loan) is for 10 years, which they have already cut it down 

from 15 years to 10 years. 

"As you can see the bank is hesitant in releasing the 

funds because of only Five year permit. However if the 

Department will extend the permit to 10 years or offer an 

option of renual (sic) for the other Five. This presently puts 

the Bank and S.B.A. in a better positi.on to release the funds." 

-2-
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For clarification purposes, staff would like to point out that 

the Planning Department is not empowered to amend the Special 

Permit conditions. Such amendments can only be made by the County 

Planning Commission subject to the concurrence of the State Land 

Use Commission. 
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RECOMMENDATION: GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, INC. 

Upon review of the request to extend the life of Special Permit 

78-292 from five (5) years to ten (10) years staff recommends that 

it be given a favorable recommendation based on the following consider­

ations: 

Staff's favorable recommendation for the original Special Per­

mit request was based, in summary, on the following considerations: 

That the proposed use would not adversely affect sur­

rounding properties nor burden public agencies in the provision 

of public facilities and utilities, that unusual conditions have 

arisen wherein there is a need for additional industrial areas 

to serve the Waimea community, and that the request is consistent 

with the pertinent General Plan policies and standards. The 

requested extension to ten (10) years would not be contrary to 

the reasons for staff's original favorable recommendation. 

Based on the transcripts of the State Land Use Commission's 

March 7, 1978 meeting, it appears that the five (5) year life­

span was imposed to allow re-evaluation of the Special Permit 

based on whether the area becomes a designated industrial area. 

Since the approval of the Special Permit the Planning Departme nt 

with the concurrence of this Commission, has recommended that an 

area including the subject property be designated as Industrial 

on the Genera l Plan Land Use Pattern Allocation Guide Map. Thus, 

after the date of the State Land Use Commission action on the 



Special Permit the Planning Department and the Planning Commission 

have gone on record sanctioning the industrial use of the area. 

Further, the ten (10) year period will maintain the State 

Land Use Commission's opportunity to re-evaluate the Special 

Permit. 

Based on these considerations, staff recommends that the 

time condition imposed by the State Land Use Commission be 

extended to ten (10) years from the effective date of amendment. 

It is . further recommended that the request be given a favorable 

recommendation - subject to the condition that all other conditions 

originally approved remain in effect. 
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RECORD OF VOTING 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

County of Hawaii 

January 11, 1979Date 

GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, INC. - Amend SpecialPetitioner 

Permit 78-292 

Preliminary hearing Public hearing Request .,,,.-Actior 

ACTION: ✓Approve 

___Deny 

Defer 

Continue 

Schedule for public hearing 

Other:_______________________________ 

Conunissioners Aye No Excused Abstain 

I 

HANLEY, J. Walsh -~P ✓ 

NAKANO, Bert H. ✓ 

ORITA, Alfredo '1~ ✓ -

PARIS, William Jr. ✓ 

SAKAMOTO, Charles Jr. ✓ 

MIELCKE, William F. ✓ 

. 

. . . . . 

- r·;1 ,. -i ., : • 

-· 

~ 



PLANNING COMMISSION 

Planning Department 
County of Hawaii 

MINUTES 
January 11, 1979 

The Planning Commission met in regular session at 10:04 a.m. in 
the County Councilroom, County Building, South Hilo, Hawaii, 
with Chairman William F. Mielcke presiding. 

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABSENT: Ex-officio Member 
(Left at 1:10 p.m. and Akira Fujimoto 
returned at 1:29 p.m.) 

J. Walsh Hanley 
Bert H. Nakano 
Alfredo Orita 
William H. Paris, Jr. 
Charles H. Sakamoto, Jr. 

Sidney M. Fuke, Director (Left at 1:10 p.m. and 
returned at 1:29 p.m.) 

Norman Hayashi, Planner 
Keith Kato, Planner (Left at 4:27 p.m.) 
William Moore, Planner (From 7:02 p.m.) 

Stephen Menezes, Deputy Corporation Counsel 
(Left at 10:20 a.m.) 

Sandra Fechter, Deputy Corporation Counsel 
David Murakami, representing Ex-officio Member Edward 

Harada (From 1:02 p.m.) 

and approximately 16 people in attendance at 10:04 a.m., 
3 people at 1:02 p.m., 9 people at 3:33 p.m., and 56 
people at 7:02 p.m. 

MINUTES: It was moved by Commissioner Sakamoto and 
seconded by Commissioner Paris that the minutes 

of November 16, 1978, November 29, 1978, and November 30, 1978, 
be approved as circulated; motion carried. 

All those testifying were duly sworn in. 

REPORTS: Planning Director Fuke stated that Jean Madden 
is appealing the decision made on the variance 

application. The appeal will be scheduled in February or March 
when the Planning Board of Appeals has a quorum. 

In the reconsideration motion made for the Joan Aanavi variance 
application, Deputy Corporation Counsel Menezes advised that the 
Supreme Court holds that in the absence of statutory authority, the 
Planning Commission, acting in a quasi-judicial capacity, is without 
power to reconsider a final decision on its own motion. Therefore 
he advised tha t the Commission should be very cer t ain of their 
deci s ion. Anothe r s o l ution wa s to s eek statutory a uthority per­
mitting reconside ration, but he did not believe that an amendment 
to the Commission rules and regulations would be sufficient. 

The Cha ir ruled that the mot i on t o reconsider was out of order and 
tha t t h e var i a nce originally granted for the Aa navi application stands. 

EX !BIT N 



Staff then read the recommendation for approval on file. 

It was moved by Commissioner Nakano and seconded by Commissioner 
Sakamoto that the application for GAF Corporation for a PDP be 
approved for the reasons and conditions outlined by the staff. 
A roll call vote was taken and mition carried with six ayes. 

AMENDMENT TO Application of Gary's Automotive Service, Inc., 
SPEClAL PERMIT to amend Special Permit 78-292 which allowed the 
NO. 78-292 establishment of an auto body repair shop, truck 

✓ GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE repair, and vehicle storage area on approximately 
SERVICE, INC. four (4) acres of land situated within the State 
WAIKOLOA, SOUTH Land Use Agricultural District. The request is 
KOHALA amend the life of the Special Permit from 5 years 

to 10 years. The area involved is the former 
site of Island Dairy, located along the makai side of the Mamalahoa 
Highway, in the vicinity of the entrance road to the Waimea-Kohala 
Airport, Waikoloa, South Kohala, TMK: 6-8-01: portion of 8. 

Staff read recommendation on file. 

It was moved by Commissioner Orita and seconded by Commissioner Hanley 
that a favorable recommendation be sent to the State Land Use Commiss i o~1 
based on the staff's recommendation and with the condition that all 
other conditions originally approved remain in effect. A roll call 
vote was taken and motion carried with six ayes. 

RECESS: The Chair called a recess at 11:59 a.m. 

RECONVENED: The meeting reconvened at 1:02 p.m. 

VARIANCE Preliminary hearing on the application of Eugene 
EUGENE YAP Yap for a variance to allow the construction of 
KANAUEUE, NORTH garage with a sideyard setback of 11+ feet in 
KONA lieu of the minimum requirement of twenty (20) 

feet as stipulated within the Agricultural (A-Sa) 
zoned district. The property involved is located approximately 
3,200 feet mauka of Mamalahoa Highway, above the Kona Hospital com­
plex, Kanaueue, North Kona, TMK: 7-9-10:5. 

It was moved by Commissioner Hanley and seconded by Commissioner 
Orita that we defer discussion of this application until such time 
as the applicant can be present with the notation that staff is 
recommending denial; motion carried. 

VARIANCE Preliminary hearing on the application of Albert 
ALBERT AND GEORGE and George Auyong for a variance to allow the 
AUYONG creation of two (2) lots with building site 
WAIMEA, SOUTH average widths of 192.52 feet in lieu of the 
KOHALA minimum requirement of 200 feet as stipulated 

within the Agricultural 5-acre (A-Sa) zoned 
district. The property involved is located along the North side of 
Mamalahoa Highway, approximately 800 feet Hamakua side of Fukushima 
Store, Pu'ukapu Homesteads, 1st Series, Waimea, South Kohala, 
TMK: 6-4-01:38. 

Staff read the background report and recommendation to set up for a 
public hearing on file. 



COUNTY OF 
HAWAII 

PLANNING DEPAR'rMENT 
25 AUPUNI STREET • HILO, HAWAII 96720 HERBERT T. MATAYOSHI 

Mayor 

SIDNEY M. FUKE 
Director 

DUANEKANUHA 
Deputy Director 

January 12, 1979 

Mr. Gary R. Caravalho 
Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. 
P.O. Box 1030 
Kamuela, HI 96743 

Dear Mr. Caravalho: 

Amend Special Permit 78-292 (LUC 384) 
Tax Map Key 6-8-01:portion of 8 

The Planning Commission at its regular meeting of January 11, . 
1979 considered your request to amend the life of Special Permit 
78-292 from 5 years to 10 years within the State Land Use Agri­
cultural District at Waikoloa, South Kohala, Hawaii. 

The Commission voted to forward a favorable recommendation 
to the Land Use Commission subject to the condition that all other 
conditions originally approved remain in effect. Should any of 
the conditions not be met, the Special Permit may be deemed null 
and void. 

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact 
the Planning Department at 961-8288. 

.! 
I 

I 

lgv 

cc State Land Use Commission 
Land Use Division,DPED 
Kona Service Office · 
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